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I am pleased to present the annual report of Kingdom Holdings Limited (“Kingdom” or the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008.

During the year under review, demand for linen yarn in US and European markets was reduced; an
unavoidable consequence of the difficulties experienced in the global economy triggered by US sub-prime
problems.  China remains the largest supplier of linen yarns in the world but exports to these global markets
inevitably suffered with official statistics from China’s Industry Information Network for 2008 recording an
18% fall to approximately 14,000 tonnes from 2007 levels.  Domestic demand for linen yarns within China
remained stable, reflecting the fact that China was one of the few countries with a growing economy.

The impact of decreased export sales was to some extent offset by the Group’s focus on domestic sales.
Nevertheless, turnover for the year reduced to RMB 448,231,000 (2007:  RMB 537,206,000).  Increases in
the cost of imported raw materials and in salary and transportation costs also contributed to put pressure on
gross profits which fell to RMB 54,315,000 (2007:  RMB 108,651,000).

Increased borrowings and higher interest rates led to a loss attributable to shareholders of RMB 22,827,000
for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007:  RMB 45,032,000 profit).  The Board of Directors (the “Board”)
of the Company has not recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2008.

Kingdom is the largest exporter of linen yarns in China and has built a well known brand based on its
reputation for quality.  In overseas markets which demonstrate good growth opportunities for linen yarn
sales, the Group has established new branches and developed agency relationships in order to strengthen
its marketing network and capitalise upon economic growth when it resumes, particularly in the United
States.  The Group has also been developing its domestic sales activities.

As well as these marketing initiatives, Kingdom has completed the expansion of its production capacity.  The
new factory for differential linen yarns in Jiangsu completed its first year of operation and the first phase of
raw material production capability in Xinjiang has been successfully completed.  These moves are expected
to benefit the Group both through production efficiencies and controlling costs, improving the
competitiveness of the Group’s products.

Technological advances play a key role in enabling Kingdom to maintain its market-leading position.
Kingdom has continued to introduce new production technologies and operational improvements to
achieve this.  Such measures will help to ensure Kingdom remains at the forefront of Chinese linen yarn
production for international markets and the Group’s aim is to continue to increase its market share to
capitalise upon future recovery in these markets.

The Group aims to increase its production of high count and patterned linen yarns with a target of 15% of
its production being in these categories with a yarn count of 39NM or above.

The Group therefore believes it is in good competitive shape for both Chinese and global markets.  This
progress has only been achieved through the dedication and effort of the Group’s entire staff.  On behalf of
the Board, I would like to express my gratitude to the staff for their endeavours and contribution and my
sincere appreciation to our customers, suppliers and shareholders for their support.  2009 will be a
challenging year and we are dedicated to working together towards the continued success of Kingdom.

Ren Wei Ming
Chairman

Haiyan County, PRC, 17 April 2009
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Overall performance

In view of the pressure on exports resulting from recession in the global economy, the Group focused on
developing new international markets and strengthening marketing efforts in the PRC domestic market. In
China, the sales network expanded in order to alleviate the impact on the Group from lower exports. During
the year under review, the total sales volume of linen yarns by the Group was 7,961 tonnes.

As greater efforts were made in marketing linen yarns in the PRC domestic markets, the Group recorded
higher domestic sales than overseas sales in the second half of 2008. The domestic sales for 2008 was
RMB246,353,000, up by 2% compared to 2007, and accounted for 55% of the total sales in 2008 (2007:
45%). As for overseas markets, sales for 2008 were RMB201,878,000 (2007: RMB295,314,000). The Group
accounted for 31% of China’s total export of linen yarns, reinforcing its position as the leading exporter of
linen yarns in China.

During the year under review, the Group rigorously monitored the impact of increased prices of raw
materials on production costs. The Group also concentrated on improving its operational efficiency by
controlling investments in non-productive projects and lowering costs through technological innovations.

Developing overseas markets in preparation for market recovery

During the year under review, the Group took steps to maintain overseas market share in preparation for
market recovery in the future. In European markets, the Group saw the first full year of operation of its Italian
sales subsidiary with local sales volume for 2008 at 409 tonnes. The Group succeeded in establishing new
agency arrangements in Turkey in 2008 and raised the number of orders by clients. The European market
will continue to be an important overseas market for the Group.

As for non-European markets, the Group achieved satisfactory expansion in 2008. The Group recorded an
increase of 146% over the previous year in sales volume across the Japanese market, and established solid
foundations by identifying new customers in emerging markets, such as Brazil. The Group will continue to
further improve its overseas sales network.

Achievements in research and development and awards

During the year under review, the aims of the Group’s research and development team were to improve
product quality and reduce production costs, develop patterned yarns, such as coloured linen spun yarns,
slubby yarns and high strength yarns. Two new patents were granted by the State Patent Office in 2008. In
addition, the Group expects to complete the development of new thin yarn machines, further improving
product quality, and enhancing the competitiveness of its products.

The Group was pleased to win various industry awards during 2008, including being selected among the
top 10 competitive players in the Chinese linen yarn industry. Also, the brand name of ‘紫薇  CRAPE
MYRTLE’ owned by the Group, was awarded the famous brand name of Jiaqing City in 2008, further
consolidating its leading reputation in the Chinese textile industry.
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Completion of new production facility

The Group constructed a new production factory for differential linen yarn located in Jiangsu, which
formally commenced full operation in October 2008. During the year under review, the total capacity was
approximately 712 tonnes. The factory’s estimated total annual capacity is approximately 4,000 tonnes. The
new production base will improve the Group’s ability to produce a diversified range of products and achieve
economies of scale, thereby improving the competitiveness of the Group.

Production of raw materials commenced

The Group completed its first phase of raw material production located in Zhaosu County, Xinjiang which
formally commenced operations in October 2008. The scutching factory’s estimated annual capacity is
approximately 3,000 tonnes. The raw material site in Xinjiang is the first rain and dew flax factory in China
with capacity to produce organic linen yarn fibers. As the demand for rain and dew flax in PRC further
expands, we believe these high quality linen yarn raw materials will secure a significant share in global
markets in the future. Costs of raw materials produced by the Group are lower than those of imported raw
materials. This advantage will help to stabilize and reduce production costs of the Group. In addition, a by-
product made in the course of production of raw materials can be sold to third parties, further expanding
sources of revenue for the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s turnover amounted to approximately RMB448,231,000
(2007: RMB537,206,000). The Group relies on its high-quality brands, flexible market tactics and
dominating market position to reduce the impact from the slow-down in market demand as a result of the
depressed global economy and maintain sales at a stable level.

The following table summarizes the turnover arising from sales outlets during the relevant period:

Selling area:

Turnover
2008 2007

PRC 246,353,000 241,892,000
European Union 145,156,000 124,415,000
Non-European Union  56,722,000 170,899,000

Totals  448,231,000 537,206,000
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the year under review, because the global economic environment became depressed, the market
demand for linen yarns was lower. Also, prices of imported raw materials increased, mounting pressure on
the Group’s exports. In 2008, the Group actively increased the proportion of PRC domestic sales in relation
to total sales. Meanwhile, a portion of the production base for raw materials formally began operations since
the second half of 2008 and cost control measures were rigorously implemented. These factors led to gross
profit falling to RMB54,315,000 (2007: RMB108,651,000). The gross profit margin in 2008 was
approximately 12.1% (2007: 20.2%).

Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses in 2008 amounted to approximately RMB17,700,000 (2007:
RMB15,945,000), and accounted for approximately 3.9% of the total turnover for 2008 (2007: 3.0%).

The Group’s administrative expenses in 2008 amounted to approximately RMB38,292,000 (2007:
RMB29,571,000), and accounted for approximately 8.5% of the total turnover for 2008 (2007: 5.5%).
Administrative expenses increased, mainly because of provision for bad debt amounting to RMB2,550,000,
and administrative expenses attributable to the subsidiaries starting operation in 2008, including Kingdom
Europe S.R.L., Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd.

Net finance costs in 2008 were approximately RMB23,361,000 (2007: RMB15,090,000). There was an
increase in financing cost, mainly because of increases in bank loans and higher interest rates.

Loss/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

The Group’s loss attributable to equity holders of the Company in 2008 amounted to approximately
RMB22,827,000 (2007: a profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of RMB45,032,000). The
Group’s net loss margin in 2008 was approximately 5.1% (2007: net profit margin of 8.4%). Net profit margin
in 2008 decreased compared to that of the previous year, due to a decrease in gross profit margin and an
increase in administrative expenses and borrowing costs.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had net current assets of approximately RMB200,371,000 (31
December 2007: RMB343,159,000). The Group finances its operations with internally generated resources
and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2008, the Group had cash and bank deposits of approximately
RMB107,899,000 (31 December 2007: RMB158,256,000). The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2008 was approximately 140.3% (31 December 2007: 185.0%).
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Shareholders’ fund of the Group as at 31 December 2008 was approximately RMB634,909,000 (31
December 2007: RMB674,226,000). As at 31 December 2008, the bank borrowings of the Group, repayable
within 12 months from the balance sheet date, amounted to approximately RMB386,590,000 (31 December
2007: RMB205,714,000), while long-term borrowings amounted to approximately RMB30,000,000 (31
December 2007: RMB75,000,000), together giving a gross debt gearing (i.e. total borrowings/shareholders’
funds) of approximately 65.6% (31 December 2007: 41.6%).

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had unutilized revolving banking facilities of RMB229,998,000.

The financial strength of the Group has been greatly improved since its listing on the Stock Exchange. The
Board believes that after taking into account the capital expenditure planned to be made within 2009, the
Group’s existing financial resources will be sufficient for the Group’s future requirements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments in respect of purchases of property, plant and equipment outstanding as at 31
December 2008 but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements were RMB5,294,000.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s bank deposits of RMB47,352,000 are pledged to banks as security
for the Group’s bank loans and other banking facilities. The pledge over bank deposits is releasable upon
the termination of relevant banking and borrowing facilities. In addition, certain property, plant and
equipment and certain land use rights with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB139,250,000 and
RMB32,208,000, respectively, were pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities and bank loans.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisition or disposal of the Group’s subsidiaries and associated companies during
the year ended 31 December 2008.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Details of the analysis of the Group’s foreign exchange risk are set out in note 26(c) to the financial
statements.
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EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENTS POLICIES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had a total of 2,484 employees (2007: 2,564 employees). Total staff
costs incurred for the year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to RMB61,242,000 (2007:
RMB60,881,000). The Group offers comprehensive and competitive remuneration, retirement scheme and
benefit packages to its employees. The Group is required to make contributions to a social insurance scheme
in the PRC. Moreover, the Group and its employees in the PRC are each required to make contributions to
fund the endowment insurance and unemployment insurance at rates specified in the relevant PRC laws and
regulations.

The remuneration policy for employees of the Group is formulated by the Board with reference to the
employee’s respective qualification and experience, responsibilities undertaken, contribution to the Group,
and the prevailing market level of remuneration for a similar position. The remuneration of the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) are decided by the Board and the Remuneration Committee, who are
authorized by the shareholders in the annual general meeting, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

From time to time, the Group provides training courses both internally and externally for its employees.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The depressed global economy will continue to pose challenges for the Group in 2009. At the beginning of
2009, the Chinese Government announced new measures to provide stimulus in revitalizing the textile
industry, including initiatives such as a series of increments in percentage of tax rebate for export and
preferential credit arrangements aimed at alleviating the operating pressures on the textile industry.

It is expected that prices of raw materials will be lower, enabling the Group to reduce production costs. The
Group will seek to capitalize on the above-mentioned opportunities and continue to focus on the PRC
domestic markets as the main opportunity for the time being in order to generate profit. In the long term,
consumer demand will return to global linen yarn markets where the Group will continue to develop its
overseas market share. The focus of attention for the Group in 2009 will therefore continue to be to utilize
its production facilities efficiently, manage inventories of stock and raw material supply to reduce working
capital requirements and take steps to consolidate its leading market position. The Group will also continue
to implement stringent measures to control costs in order to stay well positioned to meet opportunities in
its markets and face the challenges of the future with confidence.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance practices and procedures
with a view to being a transparent and responsible organization which is open and accountable to the
Company’s shareholders. The Directors believe that good corporate governance practices are increasingly
important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence. In the opinion of the Directors, save as
disclosed below, the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2008.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief executive officer”. Mr. Ren Wei Ming, who
acts as the chairman of the Company, is also responsible for overseeing the general operations of the Group.
The Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of the Company. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company and is conducive to strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Company
to operate efficiently.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiries
with all Directors, all the Directors confirm that they have complied with the provisions of the Model Code
and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions for the year ended 31
December 2008 and up to the date of the Company’s announcement of annual results for the year.

THE BOARD

The Board consists of 8 Directors, 3 of whom are executive Directors, 2 of whom are non-executive Directors
and 3 of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The functions and duties conferred on the Board
include: convening shareholders’ meetings and reporting on the work of the Board to the shareholders at
shareholders’ meetings as may be required by applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed at
shareholders’ meetings, determining the Company’s business plans and investment plans, formulating the
Company’s annual budget and final accounts, formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred on it by the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”) and applicable laws. The senior management is delegated the
authority and responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating performance of the Company, and considers
and approves the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
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The composition of the Board and attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the Board, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee during the year, and up to the date of this report, was as follows:

Meetings Attended/Held
Remuneration Audit

Board Committee Committee

Directors
Executive Directors
Mr. Ren Wei Ming (Chairman of the Board) 4/4
Mr. Shen Yueming 4/4
Mr. Zhang Hong Wen (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 4/4 1/1

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert 4/4
Mr. John Michael May 4/4

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yang Donghui 2/4 1/1 2/2
Mr. Yu Chongwen 3/4 1/1 2/2
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 1/4 2/2

All Board members have separate and independent access to the Company’s senior management to fulfil
their duties and, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All Directors also have access to the company secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.
An agenda and accompanying Board/committee papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notice in advance of the meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board committees, which records in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed, are kept by the company
secretary and are open for inspection by Directors.

Directors’ Responsibility

The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the Directors in relation to the financial
statements, should be read in conjunction with, but be distinguished from, the Report of the Auditors on
pages 33 to 34 which states the reporting responsibilities of the Group’s auditors.
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Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial statements for each financial year which
gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements the Group has used appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied, and that all applicable accounting standards have been followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting
standards.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief executive officer”. Mr. Ren Wei Ming, who
acts as the chairman of the Company, is also responsible for overseeing the general operations of the Group.
The Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of the Company. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company and is conducive to strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Company
to operate efficiently.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from 13 November 2006, whereas each of the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company and is appointed for an initial term of
1 year commencing from 13 November 2008.

In accordance with article 87 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.

Pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence and continues to be considered by the Company to be independent.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code. It considers and recommends to the Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the
Directors. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure
that the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2008,
the Remuneration Committee comprised one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Hong Wen (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Yang Donghui and Mr. Yu Chongwen.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to review the remuneration policy and
structure and determination of the annual remuneration packages of the executive directors and the senior
executives and other related matters. No executive Director is allowed to be involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2008 and prior to the publishing of this report.
At the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration policies of the Directors and the
senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

No nomination committee has been established to nominate Directors. The task of nominating Directors is
vested with the Board. The Board reviews the structure and the composition of the Board regularly, then
identifies and nominates qualified individuals to be appointed as new Directors.

Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
at each annual general meeting of the Company provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at least once every three years.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors, KPMG, is set out as follows:

Services rendered Fee paid
RMB’000

Audit services 2,186

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the 2008 financial statements are set out in the
section headed “Auditors’ Report” on pages 33 to 34. Save as disclosed above and in the section headed
“Auditors’ Report”, the Company did not engage KPMG for any non-audit services during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group and to provide
advice and comments to the Board. The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lau Ying
Kit, Mr. Yang Donghui and Mr. Yu Chongwen, of which are all independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau
Ying Kit, who has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting matters, was
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings. At the meeting, the Audit Committee reviewed the
interim and the final results for 2008 with the external auditors and also the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control functions. It also reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the corporate
governance requirements as set out in the Code.

The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
which have been prepared on a going concern basis, and complies with the requirements of the Listing
Rules. There has been no disagreement between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has in place sound and effective internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investment and
assets of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Board is responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems on a regular basis so as to ensure that the internal
control and risk management systems in place are adequate.

The Company has established written policies and procedures applicable to all operating units to ensure the
effectiveness of internal controls. The Company also has a process for identifying, evaluating, and managing
the significant risks to the achievement of its operational objective. This process is subject to continuous
improvement and was in place throughout 2008 and up to the date of this report. The day-to-day operation
is entrusted to the individual department, which is accountable for its own conduct and performance, and
is required to strictly adhere to the polices set by the Board. The Company carries out reviews on the
effectiveness of the internal control systems from time to time in order to ensure that they are able to meet
and deal with the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

The Board conducted a review and assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management for the year ended 31
December 2008. The assessment was made after discussions with the management of the Company, its
external and internal auditors, and its internal control adviser and a review performed by the Audit
Committee. The Board is of the view that the existing internal control system is adequate and effective.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders of the Company are contained in the Articles. The Group firmly believes the
importance of communicating with the investment community and the shareholders in attaining a high level
of transparency. Since its listing, the Group has maintained various communication channels with analysts
and fund managers such as one-to-one meetings, telephone communications, and press releases. The
general meetings of the Company provide a platform for communication between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee
or if, in their absence, other members of the respective committees, and where applicable, the independent
board committee, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings. The Company endeavours
to provide timely and accurate information to the investors to enhance the understanding of the investors
about the linen industry, as well as the business development strategy and direction of the Group.

The Group will continue to maintain a close relationship with investors and develop greater understanding
about the Group for international investors, to enhance investors’ confidence in the Group.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Wei Ming (任維明), aged 49, is the chairman of the Group and an executive Director. Mr. Ren is
responsible for the overall management of the Group and making decisions on the business development
strategy of the Group. He has worked in the silk and textiles industry since 1979. He has been the chairman
and general manager of 浙江金達創業股份有限公司 (Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd.*)  (“Kingdom
Creative”) since 2000. He started to engage in the linen yarn manufacturing business through 海鹽紫薇亞
麻有限公司 (Haiyan Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd.*) (“Haiyan Ziwei”) in December 2001 as its director. He joined the
Group in March 2003 when the first operating member of the Group, 浙江金元亞麻有限公司 (Zhejiang
Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.*) (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) was established. He obtained various awards including “農業
部全國鄉鎮企業家” (National Township Entrepreneur awarded by the Agriculture Department*). He is
currently the vice-director of中國麻紡行業協會 (China Bast and Leaf Fibers Textile Association*), 全國優秀
青年廠長 (National Excellent Young Factory Manager), 浙江省優秀企業經營者 (Zhejiang Provincial
Excellent Entrepreneur), the vice-president of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles and浙江省第九
屆、十屆人民代表大會代表 (Representative of the 9th and 10th National People’s Congress of Zhejiang
Province*). He is also a director of Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited with discloseable interests in the
shares of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. For further details, please refer to pages 25 to 26 of this annual report.

Mr. Shen Yueming (沈躍明), aged 47, is an executive Director. He is also a director and general manager
of Zhejiang Jinyuan and a director and general manager of Jiangsu Jinyuan. Mr. Shen is responsible for the
day-to-day operations and management of the Group and also takes part in the decision making of the
Group. He has been a director of Kingdom Creative since April 2000. He was then appointed as director of
Haiyan Ziwei in December 2001, before joining the Group in March 2003.

Mr. Zhang Hong Wen (張鴻文), aged 42, is an executive Director. He is the director and financial controller
of Zhejiang Jinyuan and Jiangsu Jinyuan. Before joining the Group in 2003, he was the assistant to the general
manager and the head of資金結算部(capital clearing division) of Kingdom Creative from 2000 to 2002.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert (顏金煒), aged 59, is a non-executive Director. He is the chairman of Millionfull
Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong engaged in the trading of linen and linen mixture
fabrics. He has been a member of the中國人民政治協商會議褔建省第九屆委員會 (membership of the Fujian
Provincial People’s Political Consultative Conference*) since 2003 and a director of Po Leung Kuk since
2004. He was appointed as the executive vice president of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Ltd.
in 2005 and a director of華僑大學 (HuaQiao University*) in 2002. He joined the Group in September 2004.
He is also a director of Millionfull International Co., Ltd which has disclosable interests in the shares of the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. For
further details, please refer to pages 25 to 26 of this annual report.

Mr. John Michael May, aged 54, is a non-executive Director. He graduated with a law degree from
Cambridge University. Mr. May has some 30 years experience in international merchant-banking, financial
and investment services and has advised or represented financial investors on the boards of numerous
companies.  For over 20 years until 1999, he worked for the Hambros Group where he was an executive
director of Hambros Bank. He has been an executive director of Caledonia Investments plc, an investment
trust listed on the London Stock Exchange, since September 2003 and represents them as a non-executive
director on a number of their investments. Caledonia Investments plc is a 10.73% shareholder of the
Company. He joined the Group in September 2005.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yang Donghui (楊東輝), aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director. He graduated from工程化
學系 (Department of Chemical Engineering) of清華大學 (Tsinghua University*) in 1970. He has been working
in the中國紡織工業協會 (China National Textile & Apparel Council*) (formerly known as the中國紡織工業
部 (China Textile Industry Department*) and中國紡織總會 (China Textile General Chambers*)) since 1977
and is currently the vice president of this organisation. He has been the president of the National Association
of Domestic Textile Products Industry（中國家用紡織品行業協會）since 1999. He is also a director of U-
Right International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 627), a listed company in Hong Kong, since July 2005. He
joined the Group in November 2006.

Mr. Yu Chongwen (郁崇文), aged 46, is an independent non-executive Director. He obtained a doctor of
philosophy degree in textile engineering at東華大學 (Donghua University*) (formerly known as中國紡織大
學 (China Textiles University*)) in 1994. He joined東華大學 (Donghua University*) in 1987 as an assistant
tutor and is now a professor of the School of Textile of東華大學 (Donghua University*). He obtained various
awards for his achievements in the research of textile science and technology and for his contributions in
education in textile engineering, including the Textile Science and Technology Award granted by the Hong
Kong Sang Ma Trust Fund, as well as several awards relating to the technology of production of jute and hemp
granted by the PRC provincial governments. Mr. Yu has been an independent director of Shanghai Worldlast
Industry Development Co., Ltd., a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange since December 2006. He
joined the Group in November 2006.

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (劉英傑), aged 36, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Shandong Chenming Paper Holdings Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong).
Mr. Lau is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and obtained a Master of
Finance degree from City University of Hong Kong. He has more than 12 years of experience in financial
and accounting in China and Hong Kong. He joined the Group in November 2006.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Cheng Yee Fai, Fred (鄭怡輝), aged 50, is employed on a full-time basis as the company secretary and
qualified accountant of the Group. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore and a member of the Macau Society of
Certified Practising Accountants. He is also an Australian and New Zealand Chartered Accountant. Mr.
Cheng has been engaged in investment banking as well as in management and financial control for over 20
years with large multi-national groups and international accounting firms. He joined the Group in
November 2006.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Yee Fai, Fred (鄭怡輝), aged 50, is employed on a full-time basis as the company secretary, chief
financial officer and qualified accountant of the Group. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Company
Secretary and Qualified Accountant” in this section for further details of Mr. Cheng.

Ms. Shen Hong (沈鴻), aged 43, is the internal audit controller of the Group and a director and financial
controller of Rugao Jinda. She completed her professional accounting studies at浙江長征財經進修學院
(Zhejiang Long March Finance School*) and has more than 16 years of experience in finance. Before joining
the Group in March 2003, she worked in Kingdom Creative as the head of finance management department.

Mr. Huang Renming (黃仁明), aged 40, is the general manager of Jiangsu Jinyuan and the chairman and a
director of Rugao Jinda. He graduated from浙江廣播電視大學 (Zhejiang Broadcast Television University*)
in business enterprise operations management studies. Before joining the Group in October 2003, he
worked in the silk factory of Kingdom Creative. He was awarded “優秀職業經理人 ” (Best Occupation
Manager) in 2006 by the中共江蘇省如皋經濟開發區工作委員會 (Jiangsu Rugao Economic Development
District Committee of the Chinese Communist Party*).

All the executive directors of the Company are responsible for the various aspects of the business and
operation of the Group.

The English names of the PRC entities mentioned herein marked “*” are translated from their Chinese names. If there
are any inconsistencies, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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It is the Board’s pleasure in presenting their annual report on the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
16 to the financial statements.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical segments are set out in note
3 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 35.

DIVIDENDS

The Company did not record a profit in 2008. The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2008.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2008, the Company’s distributable reserves calculated under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands amounted to RMB636,660,000.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
RMB846,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group and浙江金元亞麻有限公司 (Zhejiang
Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.*) (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) for the last five financial years is set out on page 92.



Report of the Directors

2008 Annual Report24

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the financial year ended 31 December 2008, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB91,339,000. Details of the movements are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2008 were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ren Wei Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Shen Yueming
Mr. Zhang Hong Wen

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert
Mr. John Michael May

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Donghui
Mr. Yu Chongwen
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company still considers such
Directors to be independent.

Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
at each annual general meeting of the Company provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at least once every three years. In accordance with article 87 of the Articles, Mr. John Michael May, Mr. Lau
Ying Kit and Mr. Zhang Hong Wen shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Mr. John Michael May will not offer himself for re-election, whereas Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Zhang
Hong Wen, the other two retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Directors
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Group which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was
a party to and in which a Director had a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year except as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below and note 30 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the Board the remuneration and other benefits
paid by the Company to the Directors. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by
the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and compensation are
appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out on pages 19 to 21.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the Directors of the Company and their associates had the following interests in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were recorded or required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

Long position in shares of the Company (the “Shares”)

Ordinary shares of HKD 0.01 each

Approximately
Total percentage of

Personal Corporate number of issued share
Director Name interests interests shares held capital (%)

(Note 1)

Mr. Ren Wei Ming 3,156,000 279,200,000 282,356,000 45.36
(Note 2)

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert — 64,800,000 64,800,000 10.41
(Note 3)



Report of the Directors

2008 Annual Report26

Notes:

1. The shares are registered under the names of the directors who are the beneficial shareholders.

2. Mr. Ren Wei Ming holds approximately 76.38% of the issued share capital of Kingdom Investment (BVI) (as
defined below). Mr. Ren therefore holds a controlling interest in Kingdom Investment (BVI) and is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Kingdom Investment (BVI).

3. Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert holds approximately 51% of the issued share capital of Millionfull International (as
defined below). Mr. Ngan therefore holds a controlling interest in Millionfull International and is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Millionfull International.

Share options

As at 31 December 2008, no share options were granted to the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the Directors of the Company or their associates
had or were deemed to have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
recorded or required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiary companies a
party or parties to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director, as at 31 December 2008, the following persons, other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were recorded or required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares

Approximately
percentage

Number of of issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares share capital (%)

Kingdom Investment Holdings Beneficial owner 279,200,000 44.85
Limited (“Kingdom
Investment (BVI)”)

Millionfull International Co., Ltd. Beneficial owner 64,800,000 10.41
(“Millionfull International”)

Caledonia Investments plc Beneficial owner 66,825,000 10.73

Atlantis Investment Management Ltd Beneficial owner 37,608,000 6.04

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the Company had not been notified by any person, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were recorded or required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the Company passed on 15 November 2006,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”).

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may at its discretion grant options to: (i) any Director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a
company in which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) the trustee
of any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include any
Director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor
to the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any Director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit, the total number of shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed
60,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 12 December 2006, the date
of listing of the shares, unless separate shareholders’ approval has been obtained.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant under the Scheme shall not in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by the Board at the time of the grant,
and must expire no later than 10 years from the effective date of the Scheme.

The subscription price for any share shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option, which must
be a business day, (ii) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

No option has been granted by the Company under the Scheme since its adoption.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 19% of the Group’s
total sales for the year and sales to the Group’s largest customer amounted to approximately 6%. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 50% of the total purchases for the year
and purchase from the Group’s largest supplier amounted to approximately 15%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interests in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions with its connected persons. The transactions constituted “continuing connected transactions”
for the Company under the Listing Rules.

(1) Lease agreement

On 2 January 2006, a lease agreement was entered into by the Group with Zhejiang Kingdom Creative
Co., Ltd. (“Kingdom Creative”) in respect of an office premises for a term up to and until 31 December
2008 at an annual rental of RMB200,000. Kingdom Creative is an associate of Mr. Ren Wei Ming and
hence a connected person of the Company. Rental and other terms for this lease arrangement was
negotiated between the parties on arm’s length basis with reference to the then prevailing market rates.
Details of the terms of this lease agreement have been set out in the prospectus of the Company dated
30 November 2006. The transaction under this lease agreement is exempted from all reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

(2) Agreement for sale of linen fabric to Millionfull Company Limited

On 10 November 2008, Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) entered into an agreement
with Millionfull Company Limited (“Millionfull”), pursuant to which Zhejiang Jinyuan agreed to sell
linen fabric to Millionfull or its associate for a term from 10 November 2008 to 31 December 2010.
The prices of linen fabric under this agreement were determined with reference to: (i) a comparable
market price of linen fabric; or (ii) by agreement between the parties based on prices no less favourable
to/from third parties or reasonably agreed between the parties at cost-plus basis, if no comparable
market price can be taken as a reference. Millionfull is owned as to 50.22% by Mr. Ngan Kam Wai
Albert, a substantial shareholder and a director of the Company. Accordingly, Millionfull is a connected
person of the Company. Details of the terms of this agreement have been set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 12 November 2008. The transactions under this agreement are subject to
reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board has engaged the auditors of the Company to
perform certain agreed-upon procedures on the aforesaid continuing connected transactions. Based on
the work performed, the auditors of the Company have provided a letter to the Board confirming that
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

(i) have been approved by the Directors;

(ii) were entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(iii) were entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(iv) save for the sales transaction with Millionfull as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 12 November 2008, which had exceeded the annual cap amount of US$160,000 by
US$59,484 (being the audited transaction amount) for the year ended 31 December 2008
approved by the Stock Exchange, did not exceed the annual cap amounts.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Company;

(ii) either (a) on normal commercial terms or; (b) where there is no available comparable terms, on terms
no less favorable to the Company than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed in note 30 to financial statements, there was no other transaction which needs to be
disclosed as a connected transaction in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 December 2008.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2008 are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed shares during the year ended 31 December 2008. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed shares during the
year ended 31 December 2008.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
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PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s pension scheme and the basis of calculation are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules:

As at 31 December 2008, none of the Directors nor their respective associates had interests in businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant
to the Listing Rules, except for Mr. Ren Wei Ming (“Mr. Ren”), who holds directorships and/or interests
respectively, either directly and/or through Kingdom Investment (BVI) (a controlling shareholder of the
Company), in certain private companies (the “Private Companies”).

The Private Companies are engaged in the silk and/or silk products manufacturing and/or trading industry
(the “Excluded Business”), which are fundamentally different from the products manufactured by the Group.

Mr. Ren undertakes, subject to the exceptions mentioned in the Prospectus, that he will not, and will procure
that his associates will not (a) either on his own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person,
firm or company, directly or indirectly be interested or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold an interest
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent, consultant, employee or otherwise and whether for
profit, reward or otherwise) in any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business which
competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly with the Group’s business, those other businesses of
the Group as set out in the Prospectus, in Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or jurisdiction to which
the Group markets or sells its products and/or in which any member of the Group carries on business
mentioned above from time to time (“Restricted Activity”) or (b) either on his own account or in conjunction
with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, or as a principal, shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise, directly or indirectly, solicit, interfere
with or endeavour to entice away from any member in the Group any person, firm, company or organization
who to its or his knowledge is now or has been a customer, supplier or employee of any member in the Group.

By reasons of the fact that the Excluded Business does not pose any direct or indirect actual competition with
the Group’s business and that Mr. Ren has already given an undertaking as above referred to, the Group is
therefore capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arms length from, the Excluded
Business as described above.

Presently, Mr. Ren has no plans to inject the aforesaid Excluded Business into the Group.

The Company has received from Kingdom Investment (BVI) and Mr. Ren an annual confirmation that it/he
has fully complied with its/his obligations under the deed of non-competition in favour of the Company
dated 17 April 2009.



Report of the Directors

2008 Annual Report32

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's principal corporate governance practices are set out on page 13 to 17.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 19 May 2009 to 26 May 2009, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the entitlement
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 18 May 2009.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year have been audited by KPMG who shall retire and, being eligible, shall offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ren Wei Ming
Chairman

Haiyan County, PRC, 17 April 2009
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Auditors’ report to the shareholders of
Kingdom Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingdom Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 35 to 91, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements,
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

17 April 2009
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The notes on pages 41 to 91 form part of these financial statements.

Note 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Turnover 2 448,231 537,206

Cost of sales (393,916) (428,555)

Gross profit 54,315 108,651

Other operating income 4 3,184 1,584
Distribution costs (17,700) (15,945)
Administrative expenses (38,292) (29,571)
Other operating expenses (2,749) (1,901)

(Loss)/profit from operations (1,242) 62,818
---------------- ----------------

Finance income 6,196 2,331
Finance expenses (29,557) (17,421)

Net finance costs 6(a) (23,361) (15,090)
---------------- ----------------

(Loss)/profit before income tax 6 (24,603) 47,728

Income tax 7(a) 1,776 (2,696)

(Loss)/profit for the year
– attributable to equity holders

of the Company 25(a) (22,827) 45,032

Dividends payable to equity
holders attributable to the year
– Final dividend proposed after

balance sheet date 11 — 15,563

 — 15,563

 Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (RMB) 12  (0.04) 0.07
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Note 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 13 409,502 366,413
Investment properties 14 10,272 —
Lease prepayments 15 37,368 38,147
Deferred tax assets 7(c) 7,396 1,507

464,538 406,067
---------------- ----------------

Current assets

Inventories 17 312,381 272,747
Prepaid income tax 7(e) 3,489 1,314
Trade and other receivables 18 226,064 248,046
Pledged deposits 19 47,352 66,678
Fixed deposits with banks 20 10,350 —
Cash and cash equivalents 21  97,549 158,256

697,185 747,041
---------------- ----------------

Current liabilities

Bank loans 22 386,590 205,714
Trade and other payables 23 110,224 198,168

496,814 403,882
---------------- ----------------

Net current assets 200,371 343,159
---------------- ----------------

Total assets less current liabilities 664,909 749,226
---------------- ----------------

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans 22 30,000 75,000
---------------- ----------------

Net assets  634,909 674,226

Capital and reserves
Share capital 24 6,272 6,272
Reserves 25(a)  628,637 667,954

Total equity  634,909 674,226

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 April 2009.

Ren Wei Ming )
)
) Directors

Shen Yueming )

The notes on pages 41 to 91 form part of these financial statements.
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Note 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries 16 370,221 370,221
---------------- ----------------

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 18 272,082 271,849
Cash and cash equivalents 21 2,629 1,340

274,711 273,189
---------------- ----------------

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 2,000 —

2,000 —
---------------- ----------------

Net current assets 272,711 273,189
---------------- ----------------

Net assets 642,932 643,410

Capital and reserves

Share capital 24 6,272 6,272
Reserves 25(b) 636,660 637,138

Total equity 642,932 643,410

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 April 2009.

Ren Wei Ming )
)
) Directors

Shen Yueming )

The notes on pages 41 to 91 form part of these financial statements.
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PRC
Share Share Merger statutory Exchange Retained

capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Note 24) (Note 25 (b)) (Note 25 (a)) (Note 25 (a)) (Note 25 (a))

As at 1 January 2007 6,272 268,001 196,816 27,128 — 154,321 652,538

Profit for the year — — — — — 45,032 45,032
Transfer to reserve — — — 7,182 — (7,182 ) —
Dividend approved and

paid during the year — — — — — (23,344 ) (23,344 )

As at 31 December 2007 6,272 268,001 196,816 34,310 — 168,827 674,226

As at 1 January 2008 6,272 268,001 196,816 34,310 — 168,827 674,226

Loss for the year — — — — — (22,827 ) (22,827 )
Transfer to reserve — — — 862 — (862 ) —
Exchange difference on

translation of financial statements
of overseas subsidiaries — — — — (927 ) — (927 )

Dividend approved and paid during
the year (Note 11) — — — — — (15,563 ) (15,563 )

As at 31 December 2008 6,272 268,001 196,816 35,172 (927) 129,575 634,909

The notes on pages 41 to 91 form part of these financial statements.



Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2008

Kingdom Holdings Limited 39

Note 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

(Loss)/profit before taxation (24,603) 47,728
Adjustments for:

– Depreciation 37,978 30,389
– Amortisation of lease prepayment 849 753
– Provision for inventories 9,314 718
– Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment — 80
– Allowance for doubtful debts, net of reversal 2,550 1,167
– Interest expenses 27,432 12,636
– Interest income (3,525) (2,331)

Operating profit before changes in working capital 49,995 91,140

Increase in inventories (48,948) (108,794)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 4,026 (61,260)
Decrease in trade and other payables (74,773) (17,238)

Cash used in operations (69,700) (96,152)

Interest expense paid (29,532) (13,478)
PRC income tax paid (6,288) (5,395)

Net cash used in operating activities (105,520) (115,025)
---------------- ----------------

Investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (86,497) (104,303)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment — 198
Payment for lease prepayments (70) (1,216)
Interest received 3,525 2,331
Increase in fixed deposits with banks (10,350) —
Decrease in pledged deposits 19,326 8,748

Net cash used in investing activities (74,066) (94,242)
---------------- ----------------

The notes on pages 41 to 91 form part of these financial statements.
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Note 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Financing activities

Proceeds from loans and borrowings 416,556 259,366
Repayment of loans and borrowings (280,680) (197,452)
Dividends paid to equity holders (15,563) (23,344)

Net cash generated from financing activities 120,313 38,570
---------------- ----------------

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (59,273) (170,697)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 158,256 330,010

Effect of foreign exchange rates change on cash (1,434) (1,057)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 21 97,549 158,256

The notes on pages 41 to 91 form part of these financial statements.
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1 Significant accounting policies

Kingdom Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 21 July 2006 under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12 December 2006.

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”). IFRSs include International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the IASB. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. These IFRS
developments have had no material impact on the Group’s financial statements as either they were
consistent with accounting policies already adopted by the Group or they were not relevant to the
Group’s and the Company’s operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (Note 33).

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2008 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). Except for share and
per share data, financial information presented in RMB has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

Information about judgements made by management in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements and significant
areas of estimation uncertainty are included in Note 31.

(c) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (Note 1(h)).

(d) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Balance sheet items arising on
consolidation of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised and accumulated
separately as exchange reserve in the equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised
in equity which relate to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note 1(h)). Depreciation is recognised in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 20 years. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described in Note 1(o)(ii).

(f) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (Note 1(h)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost
of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of materials,
direct labour, other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for
its intended use, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 1(r)).

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.

(ii) Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from own-occupied to investment property, the cost and
accumulated depreciation of that property are reclassified as investment property.

(iii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the
day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the income
statement as incurred.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(iv) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

– Plant and buildings 20 years
– Machinery 10 years
– Office equipment 5 years
– Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful lives of an asset and its residual values, if any, are reassessed at the reporting
date.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories is computed using the weighted average method, and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition.
In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes appropriate share of
production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Kingdom Holdings Limited 45

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment

(i) Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective
evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following events:

– significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
– a breach of the contract; and
– it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset carried at amortised cost is calculated as
the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate where the effect of discounting is
material. All impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

An impairment loss is reversed through income statement if the reversal can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in the income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment (continued)

(ii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories (Note 1(g))
and deferred tax assets (Note 1(s)) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset
group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (Note 1(h)), except where the receivables are
interest-free advances made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (Note 1(h)).

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, which are within three months of maturity at acquisition and are unrestricted
as to withdrawal and use.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(l) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in the income statement over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses and staff welfare are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
expense in the income statement when they are due, except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an expense.

(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Revenue

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in income statement as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the income statement in
equal installments over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) Government Grants

Government grants are recognised initially in the balance sheet as deferred income when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions associated with the grant. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised in the income statement on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised in the income statement on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement
as an integral part of the net lease payments made.

Lease prepayments in the balance sheet represent cost of land use rights paid to the People’s
Republic of China (“the PRC”) land bureau. Land use rights are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 1(h)). Amortisation is charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the respective periods of the rights.

(q) Finance income and expenses

Finance income represents interests income from deposits placed with banks, which is recognised
in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective interest method, and net foreign
exchange gain.

Finance expenses comprise interest payable on borrowings, net of borrowing costs capitalised
(Note 1(r)), calculated using the effective interest rate method, bank charges and net foreign
exchange losses.

(r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment of tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary
differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same
time as the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.

(t) Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

(v) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related
products or services (business segment) or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

(w) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a jointly controlled entity in which the Group is a
venture;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or
a close family member of such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of employees of the Group
or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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2 Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale of linen yarns.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to customers, net of value added tax and is after
deduction of any sales discounts and returns.

3 Segment reporting

The Group’s turnover and operating results are almost entirely generated from the manufacture and sale
of linen yarns. Accordingly, no business segment analysis is provided. In presenting the information in
respect of geographical segments, segment turnover is based on the geographical location of
customers. The Group’s assets and liabilities are almost entirely situated in the PRC and accordingly,
no analysis of segment assets, liabilities and capital expenditure is provided.

The analysis of the geographical location of the operations of the Group during the year is set out below:

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Turnover

PRC 246,353 241,892
Overseas

– European Union 145,156 124,415
– Non-European Union 56,722 170,899

Total  448,231 537,206

Segment results

PRC 18,312 35,342
Overseas

– European Union 17,249 28,265
– Non-European Union 2,813 29,100

Total 38,374 92,707
Unallocated operating income and expenses  (39,616) (29,889)

(Loss)/profit from operations (1,242) 62,818
Net finance costs (23,361) (15,090)
Income tax  1,776 (2,696)

(Loss)/profit for the year (22,827) 45,032
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4 Other operating income

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Government grants 1,229 65
Gross rentals from investment properties 727 —
Sundry income 1,228 1,519

3,184 1,584

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group was granted local government subsidies of RMB
1,229,000 (2007: RMB65,000) as encouragement for its development.

5 Personnel expenses

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Salaries, wages and other benefits 56,140 57,780
Contributions to defined contribution plans 5,102 3,101

61,242 60,881

The Group participates in defined contribution pension plans managed by the PRC local government
authorities whereby the Group is required to pay annual contributions at 18.5%~21% of the average
salary level determined by the respective PRC authorities. The Group remits all the pension fund
contributions to the respective social security offices, which are responsible for the payments of
liabilities relating to the pension fund. The Group has no obligation for the payment of retirement
benefits other than the contributions described above.
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6 (Loss)/profit before taxation:

(Loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) Net finance costs

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Interest income (3,525) (2,331)
Foreign exchange gain, net (2,671) —

Finance income (6,196) (2,331)
---------------- ----------------

Interest on bank loans 29,532 13,478
Less: borrowing costs capitalised (2,100) (842)

Net interest expenses 27,432 12,636
Bank charges 2,125 2,616
Foreign exchange losses, net — 2,169

Finance expenses 29,557 17,421
---------------- ----------------

Net finance costs 23,361 15,090

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at the weighted average rate of 6.70% (2007: 7.20%)
per annum for the year ended 31 December 2008.

(b) Other items

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost of inventories* 393,916 428,555
Depreciation 37,978 30,389
Amortisation of lease prepayments 849 753
Provision for inventories 9,314 718
Operating lease charges on premises 1,293 487
Allowance for doubtful debts, net of reversals 2,550 1,167
Auditors’ remuneration-audit services  2,186 1,830

* Cost of inventories includes RMB89,135,000 (2007: RMB76,850,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation expenses, amortisation of lease prepayments and provision for inventories which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in Note 5 for each type of
expenses.
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7 Income tax

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Current tax:
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax — 11
Provision for PRC income tax 4,214 8,960
Income tax refund — (4,806)
(Over)/under provision in respect of prior years (101) 38

4,113 4,203
Changes in deferred tax (Note 7(c))  (5,889) (1,507)

(1,776) 2,696

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the British Virgin Islands.

(ii) In February 2008, the Hong Kong Government announced a decrease in the Profits Tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% applicable to the Group’s operations in Hong Kong as from the year
ended 31 December 2008. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made during the
year ended 31 December 2008 as the subsidiaries did not earn any assessable income for
Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes.

(iii) The Group’s subsidiary in Italy did not earn any taxable income for Italian income tax
purposes. Accordingly, no provision for Italy income tax has been made during the year
ended 31 December 2008.

(iv) The provision for PRC income tax is based on the respective corporate income tax rates
applicable to the subsidiaries located in the PRC as determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC (“FEIT Law”), certain subsidiaries
located in the PRC (“PRC subsidiaries”) including Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang
Jinyuan”), Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Jinyuan”) and Jiangsu Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Ziwei”) are entitled to a tax holiday of a tax-free period for two years from their first
profit-making year of operations and thereafter, they are subject to PRC enterprise income
tax at 50% of the applicable income tax rate for the following three years (“Tax Holidays”).
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7 Income tax (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (continued)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National People’s Congress passed
the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (“New Tax Law”). According
to the New Tax Law, the applicable tax rates of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are unified
at 25% with effect from 1 January 2008 except Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co.,Ltd.(“Zhaosu Jindi”)
which is engaged in preliminary processing of agriculture products and is exempted from
PRC income tax. Pursuant to the transitional arrangement under the New Tax Law, Jiangsu
Ziwei and Jiangsu Jinyuan will continue to enjoy the tax-exemption or 50% reduction on the
applicable income tax rate under the New Tax Law until the expiry of the Tax Holidays
previously granted under the FEIT Law, and thereafter they are subject to the unified rate of
25%.

(v) The Group was not granted any tax refunds during the year ended 31 December 2008.
Pursuant to the relevant PRC Tax Law and regulations, the Group was granted a tax refund
of RMB 1,562,000 for re-investment of profits earned and a tax refund of RMB 3,244,000 for
purchase of equipment produced in the PRC during the year ended 31 December 2007.

(b) Reconciliation between income tax and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

(Loss)/profit before tax (24,603) 47,728

Expected tax on (loss)/profit before tax, calculated at the
PRC unified tax rate of 25% (2007: 26.4%*) (6,150) 12,600

Rate differential (10) 1,194
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,295 3,109
Tax holiday enjoyed by PRC subsidiaries — (8,835)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and deductible

temporary differences not recognised 3,099 —
Change in tax rate — (131)
Income tax refund — (4,806)
(Over)/under provision in respect of prior years (101) 38
Others 91 (473)

Income tax (1,776) 2,696

* Expected tax on profit before tax of 2007 is calculated based on the applicable tax rate of Zhejiang
Jinyuan, the Group’s major operating subsidiary that was subject to PRC income tax during the year
ended 31 December 2007.
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7 Income tax (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets recognised

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Allowance
Provision for

for doubtful Tax Unrealised
Deferred tax arising from inventories debts Accruals losses profits Others Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 2007 — — — — — — —
Credited to the income

statement for the year 251 318 506 — — 432 1,507

At 31 December 2007 251 318 506 — — 432 1,507

At 1 January 2008 251 318 506 — — 432 1,507
Credited/(charged) to the

income statement
for the year 2,127 397 (68) 2,752 1,012 (331) 5,889

At 31 December 2008 2,378 715 438 2,752 1,012 101 7,396
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7 Income tax (continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) not recognised

At 31 December 2008, deferred tax assets of RMB 2,288,000 (2007: Nil) and RMB 811,000 (2007:
Nil) in respect of the tax losses and deductible temporary differences respectively for certain
subsidiaries have not been recognised because it is not probable that sufficient future taxable
profit will be available against which the related subsidiaries can utilise the benefits therefrom.

At 31 December 2008, temporary differences relating to the undistributed profits of a subsidiary
amounting to RMB 6,254,000 (2007: Nil). Deferred tax liabilities of RMB 313,000 (2007: Nil) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of this subsidiary and it has been determined
that it is probable that profit will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

(e) Prepaid income tax in the consolidated balance sheet represents:

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Balance at beginning of the year (1,314) (122)
Provision for income tax for the year 4,214 8,971
Entitlement to income tax refund for the year — (4,806)
(Over)/under provision in respect of prior years (101) 38
Income tax paid during the year (6,288) (5,395)

Balance at the end of the year (3,489) (1,314)



Notes to the Financial Statements

Kingdom Holdings Limited 59

8 Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is
as follows:

2008

Salaries Contribution
allowances for retirement

Directors’ and other Discretionary benefit
fees benefits bonuses schemes Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Executive directors
Ren Wei Ming — 1,000 — 19 1,019
Shen Yueming — 650 — 19 669
Zhang Hong Wen — 400 — 19 419

Non-executive directors
Ngan Kam Wai Albert 120 — — — 120
John Michael May 120 — — — 120

Independent non-executive directors
Yang Donghui 96 — — — 96
Yu Chongwen 72 — — — 72
Lau Ying Kit 144 — — — 144

552 2,050 — 57 2,659
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8 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

2007

Salaries Contribution
allowances for retirement

Directors’ and other Discretionary benefit
fees benefits bonuses schemes Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Executive directors
Ren Wei Ming — 1,000 — 17 1,017
Shen Yueming — 650 — 17 667
Zhang Hong Wen — 400 — 17 417

Non-executive directors
Ngan Kam Wai Albert 120 — — — 120
John Michael May 120 — — — 120

Independent non-executive directors
Yang Donghui 96 — — — 96
Yu Chongwen 72 — — — 72
Lau Ying Kit 144 — — — 144

552 2,050 — 51 2,653

9 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2007: two) are directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in Note 8.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2007: three) individuals are as follows:

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Salary and other emoluments 3,537 1,729
Contribution to retirement benefit schemes 567 14

4,104 1,743
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9 Individuals with highest emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of the two (2007: three) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the
following bands:

2008 2007
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

RMB Nil – RMB 1,000,000 1 3
RMB 1,000,001 – RMB 4,000,000 1 —

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office in current year
and prior year.

10 (Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company include a loss of
RMB3,095,000 (2007: a loss of RMB1,767,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for the year:

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Amount of consolidated loss attributable to equity
holders dealt with in the Company’s financial statements (3,095) (1,767)

Final dividend from a subsidiary attributable to
the profit of the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year 18,180 24,359

The Company’s profit for the year (Note 25(b)) 15,085 22,592
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11 Dividends

Dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable to the year

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Final dividend proposed after balance sheet
date of RMB Nil per share (2007: RMB0.025)  — 15,563

 — 15,563

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date of 31 December 2007 has not been recognised
as a liability at 31 December 2007. The calculation of final dividend per share of 2007 is based on
622,500,000 ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2007.

Dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year of RMB0.025 per share (2007: RMB0.0375) 15,563 23,344

15,563 23,344

12 Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share is based on the loss attributable to the
shareholders of ordinary shares of RMB 22,827,000 (2007: a profit of RMB 45,032,000) and the
weighted average of 622,500,000 (2007: 622,500,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No dilutive potential ordinary shares were in issue as at 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).
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13 Property, plant and equipment

The Group
Plant and Office Motor Construction
buildings Machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost:

Balance at 1 January 2007 79,737 224,671 11,215 1,111 32,395 349,129
Additions 871 9,839 1,419 1,927 80,651 94,707
Transfer in/(out) 20,205 22,002 474 — (42,681) —
Disposals — — (442) (219) — (661)

Balance at 31 December 2007 100,813 256,512 12,666 2,819 70,365 443,175

Balance at 1 January 2008 100,813 256,512 12,666 2,819 70,365 443,175
Additions 2,076 5,835 2,909 471 80,048 91,339
Transfer in/(out) 31,067 105,272 100 — (136,439) —
Transfer to investment properties

(Note 14) (11,731) — — — — (11,731)
Disposals — — (2) — — (2)

Balance at 31 December 2008 122,225 367,619 15,673 3,290 13,974 522,781

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance at 1 January 2007 (5,752) (38,079) (2,792) (133) — (46,756)
Charge for the year (4,195) (23,832) (2,053) (309) — (30,389)
Written back on disposals — — 359 24 — 383

Balance at 31 December 2007 (9,947) (61,911) (4,486) (418) — (76,762)

Balance at 1 January 2008 (9,947) (61,911) (4,486) (418) — (76,762)
Charge for the year (5,077) (29,454) (2,443) (485) — (37,459)
Transfer to investment properties

(Note 14) 940 — — — — 940
Written back on disposals — — 2 — — 2

Balance at 31 December 2008 (14,084) (91,365) (6,927) (903) — (113,279)

Carrying amounts:

At 31 December 2008 108,141 276,254 8,746 2,387 13,974 409,502

At 31 December 2007 90,866 194,601 8,180 2,401 70,365 366,143

All plant and buildings are located in the PRC on land under medium term leases.
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14 Investment properties

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost:
Balance at beginning of year — —
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 11,731 —

Balance at end of year 11,731 —
---------------- ----------------

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning of year — —
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 13) (940) —
Charge for the year (519) —

Balance at end of year (1,459) —
---------------- ----------------

Net book value:
At end of year 10,272 —

At beginning of year — —

Investment properties represent certain units of office premises rented out under the terms of operating
leases during 2008. The fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2008, as determined
by the directors based on the valuation analysis on an open market value basis with reference to recent
market transactions of similar properties, to be approximately RMB 12,562,000. The valuations were
carried out by an independent appraiser, Jiaxing Chang Xin Certified Public Accountants, who have
among their staff Fellows of China Appraisal Society with recent experience in the location and the
category of property being valued.

Rental income of RMB 727,000 (see Note 4) was earned by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2008 (2007: Nil).



Notes to the Financial Statements

Kingdom Holdings Limited 65

15 Lease prepayments

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost
Balance at beginning of year 40,338 39,122
Additions 70 1,216

Balance at end of year 40,408 40,338

Amortisation
Balance at beginning of year 2,191 1,438
Amortisation during the year 849 753

Balance at end of year 3,040 2,191

Carrying amounts
At end of year 37,368 38,147

At beginning of year 38,147 37,684

Lease prepayments represent costs paid to the PRC land bureau in obtaining land use rights in respect
of land located in the PRC with a lease period of 50 years when granted.

16 Investments in subsidiaries

The Company

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Unlisted equity, at cost 370,221 370,221
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16 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

All of the following entities are subsidiaries as defined under Note 1(c) and have been consolidated into
the Group’s financial statements. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest
Place of Issued and fully Group’s

incorporation paid-up share/ Paid-up/ effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company and operation authorised capital registered capital interest company subsidiary activities

Overseas Kingdom Limited British Virgin HK$0.01/ — 100% 100% — Investment
(“Overseas Kingdom”) Islands (“BVI”) HK$500 holding

Kingdom Group Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,250,000/ — 100% — 100% Investment
(“Hong Kong Kingdom”) HK$1,250,000 holding

Zhejiang Jinyuan PRC — USD36,320,000/ 100% — 100% Manufacture
USD36,320,000 and sale of

linen yarns

Jiangsu Jinyuan PRC — USD11,500,000/ 100% — 100% Manufacture
USD11,500,000 and sale of

linen yarns

Rugao Jinda Flax Co., Ltd. PRC — RMB5,000,000/ 100% — 100% Manufacture
(“Rugao Jinda”) RMB5,000,000 and sale of

semi-finished goods
of linen yarns

Asia Harvest Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1/ — 100% — 100% Trading
(“Asia Harvest”) HK$10,000

Jiangsu Ziwei PRC — USD10,000,000/ 100% — 100% Manufacture
USD10,000,000 and sale of

linen yarns

Zhaosu Jindi PRC — RMB20,000,000/ 100% — 100% Manufacture and
RMB20,000,000  sale of flax fibres

Xinyuan Jindi Flax Co., PRC — RMB10,000,000/ 100% — 100% Not yet
Ltd. (“Xinyuan Jindi”) RMB10,000,000 commenced

business

Kingdom Europe S.R.L. Italy EUR100,000/ — 100% — 100% Trading
EUR100,000
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16 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Zhejiang Jinyuan and Jiangsu Ziwei are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

(ii) Jiangsu Jinyuan is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.

(iii) Rugao Jinda, Zhaosu Jindi and Xinyuan Jindi are domestic companies established in the PRC.

17 Inventories

Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Raw materials 95,270 96,700
Work in progress 23,208 14,162
Finished goods 165,675 70,607
Goods in transit 28,228 91,278

312,381 272,747

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as follows:

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Carrying amount of inventories sold 384,602 427,837
Provision for inventories 9,314 718

393,916 428,555
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18 Trade and other receivables

The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade and bills receivable 196,179 216,846 — —
Less: allowance for

doubtful debts (Note 18(b)) (3,176) (1,272) — —

Net trade and bills receivable 193,003 215,574 — —
---------------- ---------------- ---------------- ----------------

Deposits and prepayments 31,492 32,472 — —
Amounts due from

related parties (Note 30) 1,569 — — —
Amounts due from subsidiaries — — 272,082 271,849

226,064 248,046 272,082 271,849

All trade and bills receivable are expected to be recovered within one year.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.
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18 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a) Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade and bills receivable (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis at the balance sheet date:

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Current 165,933 188,004
---------------- ----------------

Less than 1 month past due 12,564 12,235
More than 1 month but less than 3 months past due 4,640 10,543
More than 3 months but less than 12 months past due 5,738 4,792
More than 12 months past due 4,128 —

Total amount past due 27,070 27,570
---------------- ----------------

193,003 215,574

Customers are normally granted credit terms of 30 to 180 days, depending on the credit worthiness
of individual customers. Further details of the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note 26(a).

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivable are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables and bills receivable directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, is as follows:

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 1,272 509
Impairment loss recognised 2,963 1,167
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts recovered (413) —
Uncollectible amounts written off (646) (404)

At 31 December 3,176 1,272
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18 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivable (continued)

RMB 2,817,000 (2007: RMB 1,501,000) of the Group’s trade receivable were individually
determined to be impaired as at 31 December 2008. The individually impaired receivables related
to customers who have ceased trading with the Group and have indicated to the Group that they
would have difficulties in settling the outstanding balances. Management consider that only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts of RMB 2,817,000 (2007: RMB 1,272,000) were recognised against these
individually impaired receivables as at 31 December 2008. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

(c) Trade and bills receivable that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Neither past due nor impaired 165,933 188,004
---------------- ----------------

Less than 1 month past due 9,478 12,235
More than 1 month but less than 3 months past due 3,943 10,543
More than 3 months but less than 12 months past due 5,717 4,563
More than 12 months past due 4,125 —

Total amount past due 23,263 27,341
---------------- ----------------

189,196 215,345

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record of settlement with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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19 Pledged deposits

The Group’s bank deposits of RMB 47,352,000 (2007: RMB 66,678,000) are pledged to banks as
security for the Group’s banking and borrowing facilities (Note 22). The pledge over bank deposits is
releasable upon the termination of related banking and borrowing facilities.

20 Fixed deposits with banks

Fixed deposits with banks on the consolidated balance sheet of RMB 10,350,000 (2007: Nil) represent
bank deposits that are over 3 months of maturity at acquisition.

21 Cash and cash equivalents

The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Deposits with banks within
three months of maturity 7,228 12,000 — —

Cash at bank and in hand 90,321 146,256 2,629 1,340

97,549 158,256 2,629 1,340



Notes to the Financial Statements

2008 Annual Report72

22 Bank loans

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Current

Secured bank loans 162,839 57,115
Bank advances under discounted bills (ii) 38,370 25,760
Unsecured bank loans 140,381 107,839
Current portion of non-current bank loans:

– secured bank loans 15,000 10,000
– unsecured bank loans 30,000 5,000

386,590 205,714
---------------- ----------------

Non-current

Secured bank loans 15,000 25,000
Unsecured bank loans 60,000 65,000
Less: current portion

– secured bank loans (15,000) (10,000)
– unsecured bank loans (30,000) (5,000)

30,000 75,000
---------------- ----------------

Total 416,590 280,714

The Group’s non-current bank loans are repayable as follows:

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 1 year 45,000 15,000
---------------- ----------------

Over 1 year but less than 2 years 30,000 45,000
Over 2 years but less than 5 years — 30,000

30,000 75,000
---------------- ----------------

Total 75,000 90,000
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22 Bank loans (continued)

(i) As at 31 December 2008, the banking facilities and bank loans of certain subsidiaries were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, land use rights and bank deposits of the Group
with a carrying amount of RMB 139,250,000 (2007: RMB 97,532,000), RMB 32,208,000 (2007:
RMB 31,565,000), and RMB 47,352,000 (2007: RMB 66,678,000) respectively.

(ii) The Group’s discounted bills with recourse have been accounted for as collateralised bank
advances. The discounted bills receivable and the related proceeds of the same amount are
included in the Group’s “Trade and bills receivable” and “Bank advances under discounted bills”
at the balance sheet date.

(iii) As at 31 December 2008, total revolving banking and borrowing facilities available to the Group
amounted to RMB 375,950,000 (2007: RMB 400,624,000) of which RMB 145,952,000 (2007:
RMB 159,364,000) had been utilised.

23 Trade and other payables

The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade and bills payable 85,487 159,477 — —
Non-trade payables

and accrued expenses 24,737 38,691 — —
Amount due to a subsidiary — — 2,000 —

110,224 198,168 2,000 —

All trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year.

Amount due to a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payable is as follows:
The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Due within 1 month or on demand 31,382 97,300
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 45,732 23,924
Due after 3 months but within 6 months 7,740 33,269
Due after 6 months but within 12 months  633 4,984

 85,487 159,477
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24 Share capital

The Group and the Company
2008 2007

Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised: of shares HK$’000 of shares HK$’000

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 3,000,000,000 30,000 3,000,000,000 30,000

Issued and fully paid:

2008 2007
Number Amount Number Amount

of shares HK$’000 RMB’000 of shares HK$’000 RMB’000
equivalent equivalent

At 1 January and 31 December 622,500,000 6,225 6,272 622,500,000 6,225 6,272

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meeting of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.
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25 Reserves

(a) The Group

PRC
Share Merger statutory Exchange Retained

Note premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Note 25(b)(i) Note 25(a)(i) Note 25(a)(ii) Note 25(a)(iii)

As at 1 January 2007 268,001 196,816 27,128 — 154,321 646,266

Profit for the year — — — — 45,032 45,032

Transfer to reserve — — 7,182 — (7,182 ) —

Dividend approved
and paid during
the year — — — — (23,344 ) (23,344 )

As at 31 December 2007 268,001 196,816 34,310 — 168,827 667,954

As at 1 January 2008 268,001 196,816 34,310 — 168,827 667,954

Loss for the year — — — — (22,827 ) (22,827 )

Transfer to reserve — — 862 — (862 ) —

Exchange difference on
translation of financial
statements of overseas
subsidiaries — — — (927 ) — (927 )

Dividend approved
and paid during
the year 11 — — — — (15,563 ) (15,563 )

As at 31 December 2008 268,001 196,816 35,172 (927 ) 129,575 628,637
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25 Reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of the Group’s reserves

(i) Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the then shareholders’ total capital
contributions to Hong Kong Kingdom over the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange thereof as at the date of a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the Group to
rationalise the group structure in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange. Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus of the Company dated 30
November 2006.

(ii) PRC statutory reserve

General reserve fund

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to the general reserve fund until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of their respective registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before the distribution of dividends to shareholders.

The general reserve fund can be used to make good losses and convert into share capital by the
issue of new shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing equity holdings.

Enterprise expansion fund

The transfers from retained earnings to the enterprise expansion fund were made in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries and were approved by the respective boards of directors.

The enterprise expansion fund can be used to convert into share capital, to acquire fixed assets
and to increase current assets.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting polices set out in Note 1(d).
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25 Reserves (continued)

(b) The Company

Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

As at 1 January 2007 268,001 370,213 (324) 637,890

Profit for the year — — 22,592 22,592

Dividends approved and
paid during the year — — (23,344) (23,344)

As at 31 December 2007 268,001 370,213 (1,076) 637,138

As at 1 January 2008 268,001 370,213 (1,076) 637,138

Profit for the year — — 15,085 15,085

Dividends approved and
paid during the year — — (15,563) (15,563)

As at 31 December 2008 268,001 370,213 (1,554) 636,660

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share
premium account are distributable to shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(ii) Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the shares of Hong Kong
Kingdom determined on the basis of the consolidated net assets of Hong Kong Kingdom at
the date of the Reorganisation over the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange thereof.
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26 Financial risk management and fair value

Exposure to credit, interest rate, liquidity and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by
the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay, and may take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the balance sheet date, 7% (2007: 10%) and 22% (2007: 43%) of the
total trade and other receivables was due from the largest customer and five largest customers
respectively within the Group’s business segment.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral held is represented
by the carrying amount of trade and other receivables in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in Note 18.
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans. Borrowings issued at variable rates
and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that over 50% of its interest-bearing
borrowings are effectively on a fixed rate basis through the contractual terms of the interest-
bearing borrowings. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out in
(i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings
at the balance sheet date:

The Group

2008 2007
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying

interest rate value interest rate value
RMB’000 RMB’000

Fixed rate borrowings:
Bank loans 3.768%-8.385% 341,590 6.12%-7.54% 190,714

341,590 190,714
------------ ------------

Variable rate borrowings:
Bank loans 5.94%-7.74% 75,000 7.29%-7.65% 90,000

75,000 90,000
------------ ------------

Total net borrowings 416,590 280,714

Net fixed rate borrowings
as a percentage of total
net borrowings 82% 68%
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

As at the balance sheet date, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group’s net loss after tax and decrease/increase consolidated equity by approximately RMB
731,000 (2007: decrease/increase the Group’s net profit after tax and consolidated equity by
approximately RMB 701,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s loss/profit
after tax and consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to re-measure those floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. The impact on the Group’s loss/profit after tax and
consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

(c) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales, purchases and borrowings which
give rise to the receivables, payables, loans and bank balances that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollars, Hong
Kong Dollars and Euros.

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China.
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(c) Currency risk (continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and bank loans denominated
in foreign currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rate where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(i) Exposure to foreign currencies

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date
to currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at the year end
date. Difference resulting from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency is excluded.

The Group

As at 31 December 2008
United States Hong Kong

Dollars Dollars Euros
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade and other receivables 29,393 — 15,778
Cash and cash equivalents 5,413 3,392 1,398
Trade and other payables (23,605) (13,034) (8,047)
Bank loans (47,024) — —

Overall net exposure (35,823) (9,642) 9,129

As at 31 December 2007
United States Hong Kong

Dollars Dollars Euros
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade and other receivables 76,121 — —
Cash and cash equivalents 12,768 12,903 —
Trade and other payables (119,810) — —
Bank loans (66,150) — —

Overall net exposure (97,071) 12,903 —



Notes to the Financial Statements

2008 Annual Report82

26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to foreign currencies (continued)

The Company

As at 31 December 2008
Hong Kong

Dollars
RMB’000

Cash and cash equivalents 2,629

Overall net exposure 2,629

As at 31 December 2007
Hong Kong

Dollars
RMB’000

Trade and other receivables 253,523
Cash and cash equivalents 1,340

Overall net exposure 254,863
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous increase/(decrease) in the Group’s results and
consolidated equity that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the balance sheet date had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant.

2008 2007
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in the Group’s in consolidated in the Group’s in consolidated

loss after tax equity profit after tax equity
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

United States Dollars
– 5% strengthening of RMB (1,383) 1,383 4,243 4,243
– 5% weakening of RMB 1,383 (1,383) (4,243) (4,243)

Hong Kong Dollars
– 5% strengthening of RMB (359) 359 (645) (645)
– 5% weakening of RMB 359 (359) 645 645

Euros
– 5% strengthening of RMB 453 (453) — —
– 5% weakening of RMB (453) 453 — —

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’ loss/profit after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling
at the balance sheet date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the balance sheet date, including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes difference that would result
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the parent company’s board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. As at 31 December 2008, the Group
had cash and bank deposits totaling RMB155,251,000 of which RMB47,352,000 had been
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted, the majority of which are revolving in
nature. As at 31 December 2008, the Group had revolving banking facilities of RMB375,950,000
of which RMB145,952,000 had been drawn down. All of these revolving banking facilities were
granted by stated-owned banks in the PRC including Bank of China, Agricultural Bank of China
and China Construction Bank. Amongst these revolving banking facilities, RMB150,450,000
expire in 2009 while RMB225,500,000 do not expire until after 2009. The directors believe that
the Group will be able to obtain continued borrowing facilities from these banks so that when
required by the Group, the bank loans due for repayment within the next 12 months can be
successfully replaced with new loans drawn down from existing revolving banking facilities or
new borrowing facilities. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay. At the
balance sheet date, the Group did not have any derivative financial liabilities.

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Balance
Within sheet

1 year or 1-2 carrying
on demand years >2 years Total amount

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

2008

Trade and other payables 110,224 — — 110,224 110,224
Bank loans 398,088 31,782 — 429,870 416,590

508,312 31,782 — 540,094 526,814

2007

Trade and other payables 198,168 — — 198,168 198,168
Bank loans 219,178 50,046 32,295 301,519 280,714

417,346 50,046 32,295 499,687 478,882
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(e) Fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as
at 31 December 2008 and 2007 due to either the short maturities of these financial instruments
or variable market interest rate for long-term bank borrowings.

27 Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for equity holders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and liquidity position (Note
26 (d)) to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of debt-to-equity
ratio. For this purpose the Group defines debt and equity as total liabilities and total equity respectively.

During 2008, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2007, was to maintain the debt-to-
equity ratio at a level considered reasonable by the Group’s management from time to time with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the ratios, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares and raise new debt financing.

The debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

The Group The Company

Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Bank loans 22 416,590 280,714 — —
Trade and other payables 23 110,224 198,168 2,000 —

Total liabilities 526,814 478,882 2,000 —

Total equity 634,909 674,226 642,932 643,410

Debt-to-equity ratio 83% 71% 0.3% 0%
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28 Operating leases commitments

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals were payable as follows:

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Less than one year 1,241 221
Between one and five years 4,305 —

5,546 221

The Group leases certain properties located in the PRC and Italy as the Group’s offices. The leases run
for an initial period of 1-6 years, with an option to renew the leases after that date.

29 Capital commitments

Capital commitments in respect of purchase of property, plant and equipment outstanding at 31
December 2008 and 2007 but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

The Group

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Contracted for 5,294 33,789
Authorised but not contracted for — 39,500

5,294 73,289
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30 Related party transactions

Transactions with the following entities are considered as related party transactions for the years ended
31 December 2008 and 2007:

Name of party Relationship

Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd. Controlled by the controlling shareholder of
(“Kingdom Creative”) the Company’s ultimate holding company

Millionfull Company Limited (“Millionfull”) One of the Company’s shareholders

The Group also had a related party relationship with its directors and senior officers.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group entered into the following related party transactions:

(a) Transactions with the Company’s shareholder and company controlled by the controlling
shareholder of the Company’s ultimate holding company

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group leased an office located in the PRC
from Kingdom Creative and paid operating lease charges of RMB200,000 (2007:
RMB200,000) to Kingdom Creative.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group sold products totaling RMB 1,499,000
to Millionfull (2007: Nil) and paid expenses of RMB195,000 (2007: Nil) on behalf of
Millionfull.

(b) Balance with related parties

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Amounts due from:

Millionfull 1,569 —

1,569 —
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30 Related party transactions (continued)

(c) Key management personnel remuneration

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Short-term employee benefits 3,039 3,409
Post-employment benefits 104 65

3,143 3,474

Total remuneration is included in “personnel expenses” (Note 5).

(d) Contribution to defined contribution retirement plans

Details of post-employment benefit plans for the Group’s employees are disclosed in Note 5.

As at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007, there was no material outstanding contribution
to post-employment benefit plans.

31 Accounting estimates and judgements

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follow:

(i) Impairment losses on trade and other receivables

Impairment losses for trade and other receivables are assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable level
of judgement is exercised by the directors when assessing the credit worthiness and past collection
history of each individual customer.

(ii) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value. The Group reviews annually the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates.
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31 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(iii) Valuation of inventories

As disclosed in Note 1(g), inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Estimates of net realisable value are based
on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made, of the amounts the
inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of selling
price or costs relating to events occurring after the year end to the extent that such events confirm
conditions existing at the balance sheet date. As widely reported, financial markets in the United
States, Europe and Asia where the Group’s customers are located have been experiencing extreme
disruption in recent months, resulting in a decrease of the demand for and selling price of the
Group’s products. As the Group’s products are not a traded commodity with quoted and
observable market prices, the directors have to exercise a considerable level of judgement in
assessing the net realisable value of inventory and the extent to which the recent decrease in
selling prices has confirmed the conditions existing at the balance sheet date and whether further
selling price reductions for the products will be necessary in order for the Group to sell the
inventories held at the balance sheet date. In this regard, the directors have estimated the net
realisable value of the Group’s inventories as at the balance sheet date with reference to the latest
selling price according to received firm sales orders and assuming that a further downward price
adjustment ranging from 4% - 11%, depending on the types of products, will be  required to realise
the inventories in excess of the firm sales orders. On this basis, an inventory provision of RMB
9,314,000 was charged to the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007:
RMB 718,000) in order to write down certain inventories to their estimated net realisable value
of RMB 106,311,000 at 31 December 2008 (2007: RMB3,790,000). The directors believe that the
basis of estimating the net realisable value of the Group’s inventories at the balance sheet date
described above is reasonable based on their historical experience and the directors’ assessment
about the current market conditions in the industry. However these values could change
significantly as a result of competitor actions and measures to be taken by the government in
various countries in response to global financial crisis. The carrying value of inventories at the
balance sheet date might therefore increase/decrease if the directors’ estimates of the net
realisable value were lower/higher than the actual results. The directors reassess the estimations
at each balance sheet date.

32 Parent and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2008, the directors consider the immediate and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in British Virgin Islands. This
entity does not produce financial statements available for public use.
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33 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not yet

effective for the annual accounting period ended 31 December 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued the following amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the annual accounting period ended
31 December 2008 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

The following developments may result in new or amended disclosures in the financial statements:

Effective for accounting
period beginning on

or after unless specified

IFRIC 13, Customer loyalty programmes 1 July 2008

IFRIC 16, Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation 1 October 2008

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments: presentation 1 January 2009
and IAS 1, Presentation of financial instruments
-Puttable financial instruments and obligations arising on
liquidation

Amendments to IFRS 1, First-time adoption of International 1 January 2009
Financial Reporting Standards and IAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements
-Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly-controlled
entity or associate

IFRIC 15, Agreements for the construction of real estate 1 January 2009

IFRS 8, Operating Segments 1 January 2009

Revised IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements 1 January 2009

Revised IAS 23, Borrowing costs 1 January 2009

Amendment to IFRS 2, Share-based payment
-Vesting conditions and cancellations 1 January 2009
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33 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not yet

effective for the annual accounting period ended 31 December 2008 (continued)

Effective for accounting
period beginning on

or after unless specified

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures
- Improving disclosures about financial instruments 1 January 2009

Improvements to IFRSs 1 January 2009
or 1 July 2009

Amendments to IFRIC 9, Reassessment of embedded The amendments are
derivatives and IAS 39, Financial instruments: effective for annual period
Recognition and measurement-Embedded derivatives ending on or after

30 June 2009

Revised IFRS 3, Business combinations Applied to business
combinations for which

the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of
the first annual reporting

period beginning on or
after 1 July 2009

Amendments to IAS 27, Consolidated and separate 1 July 2009
financial statements

Amendments to IAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement 1 July 2009
-Eligible hedged items

Revised IFRS1, First-time adoption of International 1 July 2009
Financial Reporting Standards

IFRIC 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to owners 1 July 2009

IFRIC 18, Transfers of assets from customers Applies to transfers
of assets from

customers received on
or after 1 July 2009
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The summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of Kingdom Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) and 浙江金元亞麻有限公司 (Zhejiang Jinyuan
Flax Co., Ltd.*) (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) for each of the five years ended 31 December 2008 is extracted from
the audited financial statements of the Group’s annual reports for the years ended 31 December 2008, 31
December 2007 and 31 December 2006, and the accountants’ reports of the Company and Zhejiang Jinyuan
included in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 November 2006.

RESULTS
Zhejiang

The Group Jinyuan

Period from Period from
17 November 1 January

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended 2004 to 2004 to
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 16 November

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2004
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Turnover 448,231 537,206 537,364 452,349 31,621 262,077
Cost of sales (393,916) (428,555) (390,689) (318,288) (21,750) (180,233)

Gross profit 54,315 108,651 146,675 134,061 9,871 81,844

Other operating income 3,184 1,584 6,308 2,587 120 210
Distribution costs (17,700) (15,945) (16,701) (14,802) (716) (6,721)
Administrative expenses (38,292) (29,571) (22,118) (14,753) (1,070) (4,073)
Other operating expenses (2,749) (1,901) (902) (626) — (419)

(Loss)/profit from operations (1,242) 62,818 113,262 106,467 8,205 70,841
Net finance costs (23,361) (15,090) (17,649) (11,940) (1,236) (10,342)

(Loss)/profit before taxation (24,603) 47,728 95,613 94,527 6,969 60,499
Income tax 1,776 (2,696) (5,247) — — —

(Loss)/profit for the
year/period (22,827) 45,032 90,366 94,527 6,969 60,499

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 16 November

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2004

Total assets 1,161,723 1,153,108 1,082,220 670,161 574,842 489,591
Total liabilities (526,814) (478,882) (429,682) (380,725) (407,015) (334,755)

Net assets 634,909 674,226 652,538 289,436 167,827 154,836

The English names of the PRC entities mentioned herein marked “*” are translated from their Chinese names. If there
are any inconsistencies, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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